
Shropshire Council
Legal and Democratic Services
Shirehall
Abbey Foregate
Shrewsbury
SY2 6ND

Date:   Tuesday, 19 March 2019
:

Committee: 
People Overview Committee

Date: Wednesday, 27 March 2019
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, 
Shropshire, SY2 6ND

You are requested to attend the above meeting. 
The Agenda is attached

Claire Porter
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

Members of the Committee
Peggy Mullock (Chair)
Kevin Turley (Vice-Chair)
Clare Aspinall
Christian Lea
Matt Lee

Elliott Lynch
Cecilia Motley
Kevin Pardy
John Price
David Vasmer

Co-opted Members (Voting):
Carol Morgan Diocese of Shrewsbury (RC)
Sian Lines Diocese of Hereford (CE)

Co-opted Members (Non-Voting):
Mark Hignett Voluntary and Community Sector 

Assembly

Substitute Members:
Roy Aldcroft
Dean Carroll
Julian Dean
Rob Gittins
Roger Hughes

Jane MacKenzie
Claire Wild
Paul Wynn
Roger Evans



Substitute Co-opted Members (Voting):

Your Committee Officer is: 

Tim Ward  Committee Officer
Tel:  01743 257713
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk



AGENDA
1 Apologies and Substitutions 

To receive apologies for absence from Members of the Committee

2 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

Members are reminded they must not participate in the discussion or vote on 
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave 
the room prior to the commencement of the debate.

3 Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)

The minutes of the last meeting, held on 20 February 2019, are attached for 
confirmation.

4 Public Question Time 

To receive any public questions or petitions from the public, notice of which has 
been given in accordance with Procedure Rule 14.  The deadline for this 
meeting is 10.00am on 26 March 2019

5 Members' Question Time 

To receive any questions of which Members of the Council have given notice.

Deadline for notification: 10.00am on 26 March 2019

6 Committee Update 

To receive updates on items not on the agenda

7 Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board Annual Report (Pages 7 - 40)

The Annual Report of The Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board is attached 

8 Warmer Homes 

To receive a presentation on Warmer Homes from Paul Kelly, Housing 
Operations Manager



9 Support for Schools 

To receive a verbal update from the Director of Children’s Services

10 School Transport 

To receive an update from the Director of Children’s Services, report to follow.

11 Work Programme (Pages 41 - 56)

The Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme is attached

12 Date of Next Meeting 

Members are reminded that the next meeting of the People Overview 
Committee will be held on Wednesday 5 June 2019 at 10.00am



PEOPLE OVERVIEW COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 20 February 2019
10.00  - 11.10 am in the Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, 
Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND

Responsible Officer:    Tim Ward
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257713

Present 
Shropshire Councillors
Councillor Peggy Mullock (Chairman)
Councillors Christian Lea, Cecilia Motley and Kevin Pardy

Co-Opted Members (Voting)
Sian Lines

Co-Opted Members (Voting)

32 Apologies and Substitutions 

32.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors David Vasmer and Kevin 
Turley.

32.2 Councillor Roger Evans substituted for Councillor David Vasmer. 

33 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

33.1 There were no declarations of pecuniary interest.

34 Minutes 

34.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 19th December 2018 had been circulated.

32.1 RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the People Overview Committee held on 19th December 2018 
be approved as true record and signed by the Chairman.

35 Public Question Time 

35.1 There were no questions from members of the public.

36 Members' Question Time 

36.1 There were no questions from Members.



Minutes of the People Overview Committee held on 20 February 2019

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 2

37 Committee Update 

37.1 In response to a Members query regarding the Education Transport Assistance 
Policy, the Director for Children’s Services explained that it was still under review 
and a report would go to Cabinet for their consideration in due course.

37.2 Members requested further information on plans to provide additional in-county 
accommodation provision for looked after children.  The Director of Children’s 
Services confirmed that this issue was being examined and a project board had 
been established to identify potential properties and that Council would be 
considering a report on the issue at its next meeting.

38 Early Help Hubs 

38.1 The Head of Early Help, Partnerships and Commissioning updated Members on the 
Early Help Family Hubs. (Copy of presentation attached to signed minutes).

38.2 Members noted that there were seven newly created Early Help Family Hubs, with 
all teams being relocated into them by 1st April 2019.  It was planned that partner 
organisations would also relocate to the Hubs if they weren’t already in residence.  
She continued that there were a total of 26 buildings. The Head of Early Help, 
Partnerships and Commissioning confirmed that service provision was not 
restricted to the Hubs but service delivery was undertaken in service users homes 
or community facilities where private meeting space could be provided. 

38.3 The Head of Early Help, Partnerships and Commissioning explained that Troubled 
Family Places had increased by 146% with 3,200 children in the programme, twelve 
additional Family Help Assistants had been recruited. She continued that 220 
families had been successfully stepped down to the Early Help Programme. 

38.4 Referring to the Digital Transformation Programme, the Head of Early Help, 
Partnerships and Commissioning advised Members that a new software system 
called Liquid Logic would be implemented by April 2020.  This would allow 
improved place based planning through improved data collection and interrogation, 
leading to better understanding of issues in communities, such as Bronze Level 
Tasking and rises in County Lines drug trafficking. This improved data analysis 
would also allow improved service management through more accurate prediction 
of service requirement.  She added that the web pages has also been amended to 
make contacting the service easier, and social media was also used to promote 
services. 

38.5 In response to a Member’s question the Head of Early Help, Partnerships and 
Commissioning confirmed that other authorities were already successfully using the 
new programme. The Programme for Shropshire had been specifically designed to 
incorporate successful features from previous versions of the programme employed 
by other authorities.

38.5 Members noted that good relationships with schools had been cultivated and that 
all professionals involved in the care of the child and family were working together 



Minutes of the People Overview Committee held on 20 February 2019

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 3

and making necessary referrals. In addition, a drop-in service for young people with 
mental health issues was provided.     

38.6 The Head of Early Help, Partnerships and Commissioning agreed to provide 
Members with relevant information and phone numbers.

39 Progress and Impact of the Delivery of the Ofsted Action Plan 

39.1 Members received the report of the Assistant Director Children’s Social Care and 
Safeguarding which set out the Ofsted Action Plan and Care Leaver Action Plan.

39.2 The Assistant Director of Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding outlined the 
background to the report as detailed in the report document.  She observed that 
progression was being achieved through all 12 recommendations and additional 
actions to address the key areas of learning in the Ofsted Action Plan. Likewise, 
with the Care Leavers Action Plan. She continued that these were dynamic 
documents and as such would always be a work in progress.

39.3 Members noted that since the publication of the Action Plan, a further visit from 
both Ofsted and Mark Riddell, Department of Education national advisor, had been 
received.  These visits had provided further areas of focus for the new Action Plans, 
some of which built on the original actions.  The action plans formed key areas of 
focus for the Corporate Parenting Panel work programme.

39.4 Members noted that robust a robust Quality Assurance Framework had been 
identified in both Ofsted Inspections.

39.5 Members discussed the issue of offering apprenticeships with the Council to looked 
after children school leavers.  Members noted that a new approach to this was 
being taken which was now based on the aspiration of the school leaver.  

39.6 Referring to the housing needs of looked after children leaving the care, the 
Assistant Director of Children’s Social Care and Safeguarding advised that the 
system had been changed to enable gold banding status to be issued prior to the 
applicants 18th birthday.  She continued that although there were still challenges to 
be overcome, this enabled housing colleagues to more effective planning of 
housing provision.  Members noted the appointment of an Interim Service Manager 
who had previously worked other authorities and had wide experience of issues 
experienced by young people leaving care.  

39.7 In response to a Members question, the Portfolio Holder for Children and Young 
People assured Members that Children’s Services had achieved a vast amount but 
there was always more that could be done.  The Service recognised the importance 
of getting young people ready to live independently in the same way as a good 
parent would do.

39.8 RESOLVED:

i) That it be agreed to close down the Ofsted Action Plan and Care Leaver Action 
Plans; and



Minutes of the People Overview Committee held on 20 February 2019

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 4

ii) That on-going work as part of on-going service improvement work be monitored, 
with on-going oversight through Quality Assurance Framework and Corporate 
Parenting Panel.

40 SEND Peer Review 

40.1 RESOLVED:

That the SEND Peer Review Update be deferred to a later meeting of the 
Committee.

40.2 The Director for Children’s Services advised Members that she was expecting a 
SEND Inspection at some time during the next year, and she would provide details 
of the preparations being undertaken for the inspection to a later meeting of the 
Committee for consideration and comment.

40.3 Members noted that Children’s Services were involved in a pilot of Financial 
Diagnostic Peer Review in February with the LGA and it had been agreed that they 
would run and give feedback on the new tool.  It had identified that the 
Department’s largest expenditure was on looked after children, but the application 
had also found high costs from the use of agency social workers and recruitment 
and retention due to staff turnover levels.  In response to a Member’s question, the 
Director of Children’s Services responded that there was no obvious cause for staff 
churn apart from a national shortage of social workers which affected all authorities. 
She continued that agency social workers accounted for around 22% of the 
workforce and cost approximately double that of those directly employed.

40.4 Members were also updated on the progress of the Digital Transformation 
Programme in relation to Liquid Logic which allowed for significant advancements 
in children’s social care and freed up staff time which had previously been spent on 
recording data.  She confirmed that there was a dedicated project team for its 
development and implementation.  

41 Work Programme 

41.1 Members considered the future work programme of the Committee.  

41.2 A Member requested that the Committee consider the Council’s Empty Homes 
Strategy and the work undertaken by the Empty Homes Strategy Task and Finish 
Group in 2015.  He queried why the budget for the Empty Homes Strategy had not 
been fully spent and had been taken forward to the next financial year. 

41.3 Members discussed issues caused by the reduction in post 16 educational 
transport assistance.  It was suggested that the Committee should consider this in 
greater depth and the provision from other service providers.  It was agreed that 
due to timeframes this would be considered at the Committee’s next meeting in 
March and the SEND update would be postponed.  



Minutes of the People Overview Committee held on 20 February 2019

Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 5

42 Date of Next Meeting 

42.1 Members were reminded that the next meeting of the People Overview Committee 
would be held on Wednesday 27th March 2019 at 10.00am.

Signed (Chairman)

Date: 





Annual Report
April 2017 – March 2018

Keeping Adults Safe
in Shropshire
Board



Contents

Foreword by Independent Chair of the Board 3

Introduction 5

What is the Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board? 6

Adult safeguarding in Shropshire this year 8

Our multi-agency procedures 9

What we have done this year 10

Safeguarding Adult Reviews 20

What we want to do next 21

Closing statement from Shropshire Council’s Cabinet Member 24

Appendix 1 – What our members have done this year 25

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

2

Annual Report
April 2017 – March 2018



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

3

Foreword by Ivan Powell, the Independent Chair

Thank you for taking the time to read this annual report and your interest in
safeguarding adults in Shropshire.

The Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board comprises senior leaders from the range of commissioners and
provider agencies who are the health sector, the Police, the Fire Service, the Local Authority Adult Social Care, and
Public Health and representatives of the voluntary and community sector and residential care providers.

My role is independent of these organisations and my duty as Chair is to ensure that the Board is given adequate
assurance that we are all delivering safe services, and that Board Members hold each other to account for this. This
is particularly important to ensure that we keep adults safe in Shropshire as we are all working together in very
challenging times. This year has seen unprecedented pressure on partners in terms of resources and capacity and I
would like to thank all partners and those who have been involved in the work of the Board, for their time and
effort, which continues to make a positive difference.

The report shows what the Board aimed to achieve on behalf of the residents of Shropshire during 2017-2018. We
continue to reflect on how effective the Board is. We hold a development session each year in a structured
manner to hold ourselves to account for progress and efficiency. The partnership continues to develop and
strengthen and although there is still much to do, this Annual Report reflects what we have been able to achieve.

At the start of each Board meeting, we hear a personal (anonymised) ‘Safeguarding Story’ shared by a board
member to ensure that Making Safeguarding Personal is a focus at each Board, and that the decisions made by
strategic leaders are grounded through reflecting on actual experiences of people and professionals.

We have a strong and effective Citizen Engagement Sub Group who do really good work for the Board seeking
people’s views on our processes and procedures and how we communicate with them. 

Ivan Powell, 
Independent Chair



I am personally committed to ensure that adults who unfortunately have to use the safeguarding system to
address risks they face, find the experience as simple as possible; in effect a good personal experience. We have
been helped during the year by adults who live in Shropshire to produce some cards to help people
understand how to engage with their safeguarding enquiry. This has been an excellent piece of work.

I would like to see us build on this work during next year to explore how we can get people to tell us what it
felt like to them having to engage with the safeguarding system.

We also need to continue to raise the awareness of adult safeguarding with all the citizens of Shropshire, as
well as our organisations, particularly if we are to support and promote the ability for people to live as
independently as they can and for as long as they choose to do so.

We have produced a more compact version of the annual report this year and I hope therefore that you find it
useful. If you would like more detailed information about the work undertaken by the board this year, may I
direct you to our website or please contact Keeping Adult’s Safe in Shropshire Business Unit at
KASiSB@shropshire.gov.uk. 

Ivan Powell, 
Independent Chair

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

4



Introduction

This Annual Report explains what the Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board have done from April 2017
until March 2018. In the report we will look at:

Multi-agency procedures

Who has needed help to stay safe in Shropshire and what work has been done to help 
keep them safe

What progress the Board has made on its strategic priorities and plan.

Safeguarding Adult Reviews

What Board members have done in their organisation and with partners to help keep 
people safe in Shropshire

The report will be published on the Board’s website and presented to:

The Chief Executive and Leader of Shropshire Council

West Mercia Police and Crime Commissioner

The Chief Constable of West Mercia Police

The Accountable Officer from the Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group

Healthwatch Shropshire

The Chair of the Health and Wellbeing Board in Shropshire

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

5



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

What is the Keeping Adults Safe in 
Shropshire Board? 

The Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board (we will call it the Board) is a group of organisations who work
together to help keep adults with care and support needs safe from being abused or neglected. Helping to
keep someone safe means working with the person at risk of or experiencing abuse or neglect to help or
protect them. This is called safeguarding. 

The law says that there are some organisations who must work together to safeguard adults and children in
local authority areas. In Shropshire this is:

There are also lots of other organisations who work with adults who are also on the Board:

Shropshire and Wrekin
Fire and Rescue Service

6



The Board works with the Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board.
Both Boards want Shropshire to be a place where adults with care
and support needs and children live a life free from abuse or neglect. 
The Board’s job is to make sure that adults with care and support
needs are safeguarded when they might be or when they are being
abused or neglected and cannot protect themselves. 
The Board must have a strategic and annual business plan that says
what it’s priorities are and how it is going to achieve them. The
priorities should make sure that adults with care and support needs
are helped and protected. It must also write a report every year to
explain what work it has done on the strategic plan. 
The Board has Sub Groups who have work plans to deliver the Board’s
priorities and strategic plan. The work of the Board and its Sub Groups
is supported by a Business Unit. The Board Business Unit has been
introduced in this year to invest in and improve the resilience of the
work of the Board.   
This is our current Board structure and what each group does: 

There are some circumstances when the Board must carry out a
review of how everyone worked together with an adult with care and
support needs in their area. This is so that everyone can learn from
what happened and improve how they work in the future. This
process is called a Safeguarding Adult Review. A Safeguarding Adult
Review must be carried out:

If there is a reasonable cause for concern about the Board,
members of it or other people who worked together to
safeguarding an adult with care and support needs
and
An adult with care and support needs dies and the Board
knows or suspects that their death resulted from abuse or
neglect; 
or 
An adult with care and supports needs is still alive and the
Board knows or suspects that the adult has experienced and
was seriously injured because of serious abuse or neglect.

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

7

Keeping Adults Safe 
in Shropshire Board

Sets strategic direction
and instructs the executive

and sub groups

Oversees business plans, 
makes decisions and holds 

sub-groups to account

Deliver the strategic 
plan for the Board

Executive Sub-Group

Adult and Performance
Sub-Group

Citizen Engagement
Sub-Group

Learning and Development
Sub-Group



At the outcome of a safeguarding enquiry, 
the number of enquiries where it was 
assessed that the risk of abuse or neglect 
for the person was:

127 (46%)
removed

134 (48%)
reduced

17 (6%)
remained

Outcomes were partially or fully 
achieved in 86% of safeguarding 
enquiries that were concluded.

86%
93% of people or their representatives were

asked what they wanted the outcome 
of their safeguarding enquiry to be.

Making Safeguarding Personal

Of the 91 enquiries concluded
where the person was assessed
as not having capacity, 80%
were provided with informal 
or formal advocacy support 
to help them with their enquiry.

80%

In safeguarding enquiries that were 
concluded, more people had mental 
capacity (181) than those who were 
assessed as lacking mental capacity (91)

91181

The adult’s home was the most 
frequent location of abuse or 
neglect (or the risk of it).

29%
The “source of risk” was providing 
a service to the person in
                              of the safeguarding 
                              enquiries that were

concluded

The “source of risk” was personally
known to the individual in
                               of the safeguarding 
                               enquiries that were

concluded
64%

The most common types of abuse in concluded safeguarding enquiries were:

Domestic Abuse, Neglect and Financial or Material Abuse

54%

46%

of individuals involved 
with safeguarding enquires 
were over 65 years old.

were aged between
18 and 64 years old.

There were almost
twice as many
females than males 
involved with
safeguarding concerns
and enquiries 

contacts made to  First Point of Contact to raise
or discuss concerns about an adult’s safety1,719

(47%) of contacts were concerns about abuse
or neglect of an adult with care and support needs.813
(28%) concerns resulted in a safeguarding 
enquiry: to decide whether action should be 
taken to protect an adult with care and support
needs because there was belief that they were 
experiencing or at risk of abuse or neglect and 
unable to protect themselves.

231

(4%) additional safeguarding plans were put in 
place following a safeguarding enquiry because
people remained at risk of abuse or neglect.

10

Adult safeguarding in Shropshire 2017-2018

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport



Our multi-agency procedures 

We have continued to work on several multi-agency procedures, to help everybody keep people safe and work
together. The procedures are for people and organisations from the independent, voluntary or public sector
who have contact with adults with care and support needs. The Board is committed to making sure its
procedures are meaningful and applied across all agencies.

The Board also ensures that it is represented on and contributes to the work of the West Midlands Regional
Editorial Group which produces the West Midlands Regional Adult Safeguarding Policies and Procedures.

We have produced an Information Sharing Protocol, which we will review to take account of changes in data
protection law. This will be published in 2018-2019.  

We also began a review of our Safeguarding Adult Review Policy, which will be implemented in the latter part
of 2018-2019

We have identified the need to implement a Position of Trust framework and review our Self Neglect and
Working with Risk Policies, which will plan to complete in 2018-2019.

All of the Board’s multi-agency procedures appear on our website:
http://www.keepingadultssafeinshropshire.org.uk/multi-agency-procedures. 

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

9



What we have done this year

We set ourselves 4 priority areas of work between 2015-2018. 

These were:

1. Preventing abuse from occurring:

Develop a culture of caring for others
Stop harm from happening to people
Minimise the impact of dealing with abuse on our services

2. Making Safeguarding Personal and implementing personalisation – giving people as much
control as possible over their lives.

3. Public and workforce awareness of their responsibility to safeguarding people and report
concerns if necessary

4. Establishing effective working relationships with other strategic partnerships.The Board should not
work on its own. It must work with other partner organisations so that they are clear about their role in
safeguarding adults with care and support needs from abuse.

Appendix 1 provides an overview of how our Board members have contributed to our strategic 
priorities over the year.

The Board has continued to make progress on these priorities through specific actions that we 
set ourselves last year. 

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

10



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

11

1.We have adults who use care and support
services and carer representatives in every
group within the Board

Preventing Abuse
Making Safeguarding Personal

Our Citizen Engagement Sub Group makes sure that the voices of adults and their carers are heard through the work of the Board. This
year we have reviewed the membership of the group to make sure that we have as many voices represented as possible. 

We have also been improving how the Citizen Engagement Sub Group knows about and comments on the work of the other Sub
Groups and the Board. We do this by making sure that this is looked at in every meeting. 

This year, the Citizen Engagement Sub Group has been involved in the development of the website (see Action 3 below) and
production of Safeguarding Posters with the Learning and Development Sub Group (see Action 4 below). 

The experiences of adults and their carers form part of every Board meeting. Members take it in turns to tell the Board about a specific
adult experience so that their voice can be heard, and agencies can reflect on what was done by agencies to give the person as much
control as possible over their lives. An example shared by Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital at Board from this year was:

o A patient wanted to go home after being admitted to hospital, even though her family members had concerns about her safety at
home. Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital staff worked with the patient to help fulfil her wishes and her family to address their
concerns. The patient was supported to return home safely, but sadly died some months later.  Family members have visited the
ward since their Mother’s death and have expressed gratitude to the staff for respecting their Mother’s wishes.

The Board has actively supported a project which has been co-produced with people who use Adult Social Care services by Shropshire
Council’s Safeguarding and Joint Training Teams, Taking Part and Shropshire Partners in Care. This has resulted in the development of a
range of questioning cards to support workers carrying out a Section 42 or ‘Other’ Safeguarding Adults Enquiry. These are called: ‘Talking
about Adult Safeguarding: My Enquiry and Safety Plan cards’.  

The cards will help to improve the conversation with the person affected by the abuse by:

o Simplifying the language workers use

o Making sure the views of the person affected by the abuse has expressed their views first

o Explaining how the person is going to help protect themselves from abuse

The cards will be launched at our Joint Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin Safeguarding Boards World Elder Abuse Event and made 
available to use later next year. 



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

12

2. Finalise a framework to measure how we are
performing and make sure the Board are holding
partners to account for their work

Preventing Abuse
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness

We agreed what information we want to collect from agencies to help the Board make sure that agencies are working well to keep
adults safe in Shropshire. We have agreed to focus on three areas:

o Prevention: What agencies are doing to prevent abuse and neglect from happening

o Demand and Timeliness: What adult safeguarding concerns there in Shropshire and how are agencies responding to them.

o Making Safeguarding Personal: What people who use agencies services are saying about their experience of safeguarding.

We will be asking agencies for their evidence and looking at what it is telling us next year. 

We conducted an audit focusing on Domestic Abuse with Herefordshire Safeguarding Adults Board. The audit looked at how well
agencies worked together to balance respecting the wishes of the adult who was the victim of domestic abuse and the need to take
positive action against the person posing the risk.

The audit found overall that agencies were managing this balance well. Recommendations included:

o Safeguarding Enquiries should more clearly record a discussion of the risk/s with the person affected the consequences of taking or
not acting.

o Timely discussions between Adult Social Care and Police are required.

o Consideration should be given to gathering information and advice from Women’s Aid. This is because we know many victims do
not talk to statutory services when they are experiencing domestic abuse.

o When working with people experiencing Domestic Abuse, professionals should use the Domestic Abuse Stalking and Honour Based
Violence (DASH) document as it is a multi-agency document.



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

13

3. Finish setting up our website to promote the work
of the Board

Preventing Abuse
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness

The Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board website is now set up and in place and can be accessed at
http://www.keepingadultssafeinshropshire.org.uk.  

The Keeping Adult Safe in Shropshire Board (KASiSB) website provides information on:

Who the Board are and what we do

What abuse is and how to report a concern.

Multi-agency procedures

Learning Resources: This section contains:

o A range of information, resources and briefings on various types of abuse and areas related to abuse and neglect.

o Links to recommended online learning, training providers in Shropshire and National Adult Safeguarding research and guidance.

o Examples of safeguarding case studies which show how agencies in Shropshire have worked with adults to prevent, protect or
empower them.

Safeguarding Adult Reviews conducted in Shropshire

Useful Links: to our partner websites and other key organisations.

People’s Stories: This contains case studies and practitioner perspectives of safeguarding issues. 

We have asked our Citizen Engagement Group to help us with the content of the website to make it as accessible as possible 
and have a developed a communication and engagement plan to promote the website to the public. 

We will be promoting the website to the public from May 2018 and will make sure that the website continues to be promoted at 
key points throughout the year. 

The website is always changing and being updated to reflect changes and developments. We are particularly keen to hear from 
people who use the website to understand the work of the Board or to better understand adult safeguarding. If you have any ideas
about how we can improve the website so it is easier to understand and use, please email us at KASiSB@shropshire.gov.uk. 



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

14

4. Develop easy to understand publicity material so
everyone knows how to seek help if they can’t stop
abuse themselves.

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness
Working with other strategic partnerships

Our Learning and Development Sub Group have worked with people who use services and the Citizen Engagement Sub Group to
design a set of 4 posters. The posters contain important information about what safeguarding is and how to get help when needed.
Each poster looks at a person and their experience of abuse or neglect and how we should all act and get help sooner rather than later. 

The posters messages are designed to highlight of the importance of: 

Principles of adult safeguarding: 

o Empowerment

o Prevention

o Proportionality

o Protection

o Partnership

o Accountability

The different types of abuse and people that are at risk or experiencing abuse or neglect in Shropshire. For example, domestic abuse
and how it can also affect older people, financial abuse, neglect and how this can particularly affect adults who have disabilities and
physical abuse. 

We have had a number of posters printed to be distributed to key places and organisations next year.

We have had several posters printed to be distributed to key places and organisations next year. The 4 posters can be downloaded for
display: http://www.keepingadultssafeinshropshire.org.uk/safeguarding-board-promotional-material. 



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

15

5. Write a prevention strategy for Shropshire Prevention

Last year we identified several themes for our Prevention Strategy, and have made progress on these themes as follows:

Helping people protect themselves 

o We have agreed we will collect information on the registration of Safe Places and the number of safe and well checks carried out
by the Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service.

o We have supported the development of ‘Talking about Adult Safeguarding: My Enquiry and Safety Plan cards’ (see action 1 above)

Recruitment and managing the workforce

o We are producing a Reference Request Template which can be used by anyone employing people to deliver services for adults
with care and support needs. The aim of this is to promote values-based recruitment and encourage a positive culture regarding
the provision of references as part of good recruitment practice.

Raising public and workforce awareness

o Actions 3 and 4 above highlight what progress we have made in this area this year.

Women as victims of abuse 

Neglect 

Financial abuse

o We have already begun to raise awareness of the last 3 themes by ensuring that our Safeguarding Posters reflect the types of
abuse and people that are at risk or experiencing abuse or neglect in Shropshire.

We have therefore made some progress against these themes but are yet to formalise the Board Prevention Strategy, which we will
focus on next year. 



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

16

Held a “Prevention of Abuse and Neglect”
Safeguarding Adults Board Event with Telford &
Wrekin Safeguarding Adults Board

Prevention
Public and Workforce Awareness
Working with other strategic partnerships

In June 2017 a joint Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin Safeguarding
Adults Boards held a joint event focused on the ‘Prevention of Abuse 
& Neglect’ which was held at Chester University in Shrewsbury. The
event was facilitated by the Safeguarding Adults Board Independent
Chairs from Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin. 

The event was very well attended by workers and volunteers from
statutory agencies, the independent social care sector and the third
sector. There were several topics covered on the day focused on
preventing abuse happening in the first place, one of the Keeping
Adults Safe in Shropshire Board priorities. In addition to local and
national speakers there were numerous information stands. 

Key messages from the event were around developing a zero-tolerance attitude to abuse in Shropshire and Telford & Wrekin. In practice
“Safeguarding is Everyone’s Business” means “if you find it, do something about it there and then”. Workers were encouraged to be
“professionally curious” and care enough to ask the right questions to, with the person affected, try to stop it from happening. 

At the event a National Trading Standards Scams Team Scams and Financial Abuse team member came to talk about ‘Friends Against
Scams’ a National Trading Standards (NTS) Scams Team initiative. We had local input from the Fire and Rescue Service who informed
attendees about ‘Prevention from a Fire Service Perspective’. In terms of people feeling able to access help in their local community the
Chair of Safe Places Scheme and a user of the scheme and their family talked about their experience of the difference the Safe Places
scheme means to them. This was very poignant and impactful and post event led to the Safe Places Scheme signing up further
businesses in Shropshire and Telford and Wrekin. Information about the Safe Places scheme may be found here. 

In addition to these actions, in the last year we have also:

https://www.friendsagainstscams.org.uk
https://www.friendsagainstscams.org.uk
https://shropshiredisability.net/safe-shropshire/


Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

17

Contributed to the development of the Shropshire
Domestic Abuse Strategy 2018-2021

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Working with other strategic partnerships

The Board have agreed to a number of actions within the Strategy that can be viewed at
https://shropshire.gov.uk/media/10017/shropshire-domestic-abuse-strategy-2018-2020.pdf. 

We continue to maintain a strong link to the Domestic Abuse Forum which reports to the Community Safety Partnership and is chaired
by the Adult Safeguarding Lead for the Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group. 

The event saw input on domestic abuse related cases from a police
perspective (West Mercia Police), and an ‘adults story’ told by one of the
Safeguarding Adults Practitioners from the Safeguarding Adults Team
(the case study can be accessed here). In terms of housing, the Senior
Housing Options Officer from Shropshire Council talked about
prevention from a housing perspective. Social isolation was addressed
as a theme under ‘prevention’ by the Peer Development Officer from
Action on Elder Abuse (AEA) talked about reducing social isolation and
the peer development approach adopted by AEA. The event concluded
with information on recruitment with Skills for Care talking about Values
Based Recruitment (click here to access further information) and an
update by SureCare Shropshire on local recruitment practice
development focused on the development of their Reference 
Request processes.    

Photo: Ivan Powell, Independent Chair, Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board, Nicola Barden, Assistant Partnership Development
Officer, Telford and Wrekin Council, Sarah Hollinshead-Bland, Service Manager for Adult Safeguarding, Shropshire Council, Karen
Littleford, Safeguarding Adults Lead, Shropshire Partners in Care and Andrew Mason, Independent Chair, Telford and Wrekin
Safeguarding Adults Board. 

http://www.keepingadultssafeinshropshire.org.uk/peoples-stories/safeguarding-case-study-i-am-jessica/
https://www.elderabuse.org.uk
https://www.elderabuse.org.uk


Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

18

Made sure that recognised learning and development
opportunities are being accessed

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness

We have put together a Recognised Learning and Development Programme (led by the
Learning and Development Sub Group) to ensure that the Board members and other
agencies working with adults were clear about the range of training opportunities
available in Shropshire. This is available on the Learning Resources pages of our website.
Safeguarding training should be accessed by the adult workforce to make sure that staff
feel confident in preventing and responding to abuse and neglect. 

The programme consists of formal training courses including those accessed via Joint
Training (Shropshire Council), Shropshire Partners in Care (SPiC) and other external
providers. It also recognises that there are a range of internal training courses which will
be considered equivalent. 

Our members have told us that they are making sure that their staff are regularly
accessing appropriate safeguarding training. Each year, the Learning and Development
Sub Group ask all members to give information on what training they have completed.
This so that the Board can understand what training is available and being accessed in
Shropshire, and what gaps or future training needs there may be. 

This year’s focus was how Making Safeguarding Personal (MSP) forms part of training.
Because of this piece of work, agencies have made changes to their training so that
Making Safeguarding Personal is part of it. Some agencies also found that they needed
to improve access to safeguarding and Mental Capacity Act training for their staff.  

Shropshire Council Joint Training and Shropshire Partners in Care (SPiC) are the primary
providers of multi-agency safeguarding training in Shropshire. Training courses from
both providers provide training for professionals, service users, their parents and
informal carers. Their safeguarding training courses promote the importance that the
adult is fully involved in decisions about being safe as outlined in the care and support
statutory guidance. 

They have told us the numbers of people who have accessed their recognised
safeguarding training this year:

people completed MCA
Awareness Training

people completed DoLS 
Awareness Training

people attended an MCA & 
DoLS Awareness Brie!ng

people who use services/
Parents/Carers attended an 
MCA & DoLS course

429
288
30
62

Mental Capacity Act(MCA) &
Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards (DoLS)

people completed Safeguarding 
Adults Awareness training

people completed Safeguarding 
Adults for Provider Managers

people completed Section 42 
Enquiry training

people completed Safeguarding 
Adults Community Brie!ng

people completed Adult 
Safeguarding and the Law

1065
78
45
106
11

Adult Safeguarding
Training



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

19

Strengthened our working relationship with
Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board

Prevention
Working with other strategic partnerships

In 2017 Shropshire Council commissioned a review of the Safeguarding Partnerships in Shropshire. Because of this review, it was agreed
that the Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board and the Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board should have a closer working
relationship and more support. So that they can do the best job of making sure children and adults are being safeguarded in
Shropshire. This means:

Both Boards have the same Independent Chair.

The 3 organisations that statutory guidance says must make sure adults with care and support needs and children are safeguarded
meet as a group to look at the overall direction and work of both Boards. Work will carry on next year to continue to improve the way
in which the Boards work together. 

A Safeguarding Boards Business Unit has been created which is for both the Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire and Shropshire
Safeguarding Children’s Boards. The Unit now has a Board Business Manager to lead the work of the Boards. The Keeping Adults Safe
in Shropshire Board now has a full-time Administrator and Development Officer who lead on supporting it.

To recognise this closer working relationship, a Joint Board Development Day was held in November 2017 to decide on the priority
areas of work for both Boards from 2018 to 2021. Both Boards also agreed to a joint shared priority on Exploitation. Please see the “What
we want to do next year” section below for more information. 



Safeguarding Adult Reviews

We have published the report of the review that we completed about Mrs V that we told you about in
last year’s Annual Report. The report is available on our website:
http://www.keepingadultssafeinshropshire.org.uk/safeguarding-adult-reviews. 

Actions that we set for agencies have been completed in 19 out of 23 of the recommendations from 
the report. The remaining recommendations to be completed are for West Mercia Police. They have
assured us that they are planning to make progress on these recommendations next year but have been
delayed due to the introduction of a new computer system and changes to their policing arrangements.
We will continue to hold regular meetings with them next year to make sure that their
recommendations are completed.

We have almost completed a Safeguarding Adult Review that we started and told you about last year. Mr
C’s house along with several other properties in his village flooded in 2016. When the Fire Service
responded to the flood they found that Mr C was neglecting himself by hoarding items in his house
which made his home an unsafe place for him to live. He was taken to hospital because there was no
other suitable accommodation available at that time. It has been agreed by a group of professionals who
have looked at the circumstances of this case that Mr C should not have been taken to hospital, as there
should have been somewhere more suitable for him to go. The group have also agreed that more could
have been done in this case by professionals both before the flood and at the time.  The findings and
recommendations of the review are to be presented to the Board next year so that an action plan can be
agreed. We will publish this next year. 

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

20



What we want to do next  

In November 2017, we reviewed our priority areas of work for 2018-2021. We have agreed that there is still work
to do on 3 of the 4 priorities that we already have in place. By 2021 we would like to have achieved the
following to show our we are succeeding:  

Prevention of Abuse and Neglect

o Completed and implemented our Prevention Strategy.
o Be working jointly with Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board to ensure prevention activity at the

earliest point.
o Draw on learning in Shropshire and elsewhere to ensure an ongoing understanding of how to

prevent certain types of abuse and neglect occurring in Shropshire. 

Make Safeguarding Personal and Build Resilience

o Provide information to service users and the public that is accessible and can be understood. 
o Actively seek and include the voice and experience of individual service users into our everyday Board

activity so that we know what is working for them and what can be improved.
o Act when improvements are needed and communicate how we have done this.
o Promote practice which enables an individual to build on their strengths and improve their resilience

and so prevent abuse and neglect.
o Encourage organisations to increase their resilience in delivering personalized services to adults with

care and support needs which help to prevent abuse and neglect. 

Ensure Workforce and Public Awareness of Safeguarding

o The public and workforce know what support is available to them and who they can ask for help to
safeguard adults.

o Actively seek the views and experience of the public and workforce so we know what is working and
what needs to be improved.

o Have a culture of constructive learning and development in the activity of the Board, ensuring that
areas of good practice and those for improvement are equally considered and acted upon. 

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

21



o Be assured that the safeguarding workforce is adequately trained and competent; that good practice
is being shared regularly and partners are being held to account when improvement is needed. 

We have also set ourselves a new priority that we are sharing with the Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s
Board. By 2021 we would like to have achieved the following to show our we are succeeding: 

Understand Exploitation in Shropshire:

o There is a shared definition of exploitation for both adults and children in Shropshire.
o We know the types of exploitation that are happening in Shropshire for both adults and children;

including young people transitioning from child to adulthood. 
o We are working together to prevent and stop the exploitation of adults and children in Shropshire.
o Current knowledge and practice relating to exploitation is joined up and shared across the adult and

children’s safeguarding partnership.

So that we carry on making progress on our priorities next year we want to:

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

22

Action for 2018-2019 Targeted Priority area(s)

Hold a Joint Prevention of Abuse and Neglect Event with Telford
Safeguarding Adults Board to mark World Elder Abuse Awareness Day. The
theme will be Self-Neglect and Mental Capacity 

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce and Public Awareness

Hold a Joint Adults and Children’s Safeguarding Board Conference on the
theme of Exploitation

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce and Public Awareness
Understanding Exploitation

Make sure that information and guidance on how to prevent and respond to
abuse and neglect is communicated and promoted to everyone at key
points throughout the year. 

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce and Public Awareness
Understanding Exploitation



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

23

Action for 2018-2019 Targeted Priority area(s)

Look at ways that the Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board and
Shropshire Safeguarding Children’s Board can continue to improve how they
work together.

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Understanding Exploitation

Write a Prevention Strategy which aims to prevent the most prevalent types
of abuse that we know are happening in Shropshire.

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce and Public Awareness

Continue to make sure that adults who use care and support services 
and carer representatives are asked to be involved and heard in the work of
the Board.

Making Safeguarding Personal

Start to collect information from members about their work. We will look at
what this information is telling about how adults in Shropshire are being
helped and protected.

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal



Closing Statement from
Shropshire Council’s Cabinet Member  

I hope you have enjoyed reading our latest annual report. I am proud to be involved with the work of the Board
and in doing so, I know I have helped to make a positive difference to people’s lives.

Colleagues have worked hard to promote an increasing awareness of keeping adults safe from abuse in
Shropshire with the completion of the KASiSB website and the Safeguarding Adult Posters. The Our Citizen
Engagement Group has worked hard to ensure that the views of Shropshire citizens have been included. I am
confident that this will spread the message so that we can all help keep people safe from neglect or abuse.

We have asked people to help us develop the Safeguarding Enquiry and Safety Plan cards this is a great example
of how we work together to ensure that their experience of safeguarding is personal. I know the cards will help
people to be involved and stay in control of what is happening to them even when they are experiencing abuse.

Please make sure you play your part in keeping people safe from neglect and abuse and help us to stop it. 

Thank you.

Councillor Lee Chapman, 
Shropshire Council’s Cabinet 
member for adult social care, 
health and social housing 

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

24



Appendix 1:
What our members have done this year  
There are several key individuals in each member organisation who have made significant contributions to the
work of the Board this year by Chairing and participating in meetings and carrying out work on behalf of the
Board. The Board would not work without the dedication and efforts of these individuals and the support of
their organisations to do this.

Each year we ask our Board members to tell us what they have done over the year to show they are acting on
our priority areas of work. Here are some examples of what individual members and members working
together tell us they have been doing:

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

25

Example Board priority areas addressed

Multi-agency: Safeguarding Forum
Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group, Shropshire Partners in Care and Shropshire
Council along with our neighbours in Telford and Wrekin have developed a
safeguarding forum with care homes and domiciliary care providers.
We know that care homes provide vital help to many people with care and support
needs and after a person’s own home care settings are the most common place
safeguarding concerns arise.
The Forum has been looking at providing help and advice to care homes in
managing issues that can lead to safeguarding concerns. This has included
presentations on:

Safeguarding Adult Reviews – learning from themes
How to use the Mental Capacity Act to empower residents
The management of Sepsis
Best practice in referring to the De-Barring Service (DBS)
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

Learning Disabilities Mortality Review
Use of Covert MedicationPrevention

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce awareness
Partnership Working



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

26

Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

Multi-agency: Service Provider Information Sharing Meetings
Regular information sharing meetings take place to discuss Service Providers if
concerns are emerging. The aim of these meetings is to tackle problems before they
affect people’s safety. Where a Multi-Agency meeting is required; Shropshire Council
Adult Social Care Contracts Team, Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group,
Healthwatch Shropshire, the Council and the Care Quality Commission are part of
regular meetings as well as the Provider. These meetings continue until all partners
are happy that the service is improving. If things are very serious, the Adult Social Care
or Clinical Commissioning Group contracts teams will ensure that suspensions are in
place and all other placing agencies are advised.

Prevention
Partnership Working

West Mercia Police
The “Adults at Risk” Unit carried out bespoke training to specialist adult learning
centres within Shropshire.  These sessions were very interactive with residents
who may have profound difficulties.  We adopt a light-hearted approach in
order to engage and raise confidence levels.  We have utilised Makaton sign
language which always incites loud laughing, as we invariably use the wrong
sign.  This approach brakes down perceived barriers and then then allows us to
discuss the importance of ‘telling someone’ if something is happening to them
that they do not like, or they do not want.  
We embrace the concept of making safeguarding personal for an adult with
care and support needs.  However, this can be a challenge on occasion as the
outcome the individual desires, is often in conflict to the police notion of a
positive outcome – a caution or charge for example.  
One such example of this was where an elderly adult with care and support
needs was having a family member do her shopping and cleaning for her.  She
was paid to undertake this care. Overtime however, the family member, who
had been given permission to take and use the victim’s bank card to withdraw
cash for shopping, began to draw money out for herself.  It came to light later
on, that the family member had been in financial difficulties.  

Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

27

Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

Other family members became suspicious and identified that an amount of
money had been removed from the victim’s bank account.  The police Adults at
Risk Unit attended and spoke with the adult at risk who had full mental capacity
and insight around her decision making.  She wanted her family
member/alleged abuser speaking to formally, which was done, but she was
adamant that she did not want any formal court action taken against them.
Making safeguarding personal means that she has a right to make that
decision, even if it was not the ‘positive action’ or the criminal charge that the
police would have liked to have instigated.  For the adult at risk, the care, love
and support she was given by this family member, far outweighed the thought
of her not caring for her again, or indeed the loss of her money.

South Staffordshire and Shropshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
(SSSFT) (now known Midlands Partnership Foundation Trust)

SSSFT held their 12th annual service user and carer involvement celebration
day in June 2017, this year there was a record turnout for the event where
service users and carers were involved as much as possible and there were talks
given to attendees about the impact involvement has had on individuals and
the services being provided. 
The SSSFT safeguarding team have produced an informative leaflet promoting
making safeguarding personal and what this means. This is recirculated at
regular intervals to ensure that the workforce is aware of how to integrate this
in to practice when considering raising a safeguarding concern. 

Making Safeguarding Personal
Workforce Awareness



Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

Healthwatch Shropshire 

One of the ways we can stop harm from happening to people is through our Enter &
View programme of visits to health and social care facilities. We can visit any service
that is publicly funded, e.g. NHS providers and residential care homes for adults with
learning disabilities or the elderly.  Visits always have a focus and are led by the
intelligence we receive, e.g. comments from the public or information provided by
partners at Shropshire Council, the NHS or the Care Quality Commission (CQC). The
aim of Enter & View visits is to speak to people using services about their experiences,
the staff who work there and to make observations about the environment. By going
into services, we are able to speak to some of the most vulnerable and seldom heard
groups in our communities. We are not experts in health and social care but offer a
lay perspective in order to represent the views of service users. The volunteers who
conduct these visits always work in pairs and have been trained in how to raise
concerns if they are concerned for the safety or welfare of the people using services.
Enter & View is intended to be a constructive process and as well as identifying ways
services could improve we always try to highlight areas of good practice. 

Commissioners, providers and regulators have also requested Enter & View visits
during the year. Our reports are shared with NHS England, Healthwatch England, the
CQC and local commissioners. They are available to the public through local libraries
and on our website: http://www.healthwatchshropshire.co.uk/what-we-do-0

Between April 2017 and March 2018 Healthwatch Shropshire visited 25 services,
including pain management clinics in the community, wards and clinics at Royal
Shrewsbury Hospital, The Redwoods, care homes and GP practices. These visits were
just part of our wider public engagement activities including talks to community
groups, stands at events and personal experiences shared with us by phone, email, 

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Partnership Working

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

28



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

29

Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

post and via our website and ‘Tell Us’ forms. We also provide a signposting service and
during the year we have signposted members of the public to Shropshire Council’s
First Point of Contact (FPOC) for information and advice, including around
safeguarding. There have been occasions when we have spoken to FPOC ourselves
for advice or to raise a safeguarding concern as a result of information given to us by
people who have contacted us.  

Healthwatch Shropshire works in partnership with many organisations across
Shropshire.   It uses its commissioner and provider links to share its intelligence and to
raise concerns.  We support public engagement activities (including talks and focus
groups) at the request of service providers and commissioners, e.g. Future Fit,
Maternity Voices, speaking to prisoners at HMP Stoke Heath. Our volunteers are
regularly asked to take part in Patient-Led Assessments of the Care Environment
(PLACE) by NHS Trusts, e.g. Shropshire Community Health Trust on visits to the
Community Hospitals.  

Shropshire Council: Housing Services
Staff are encouraged to talk through cases with senior members of staff during
supervision and case studies are discussed at team meetings especially where there
are concerns or where clients have raised issues that may cause concern.  Staff are
then supported to refer these cases through to safeguarding and to liaise with the
safeguarding team as and when needed.

Prevention
Workforce Awareness

Robert Jones Agnes Hunt Orthopaedic Hospital NHS Foundation Trust:
We have continued to monitor and improve our Harm Free Care processes
considerably reducing harm to patients in the areas of Pressure Ulcers and Falls. 

Prevention



Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

West Mercia National Probation Service (NPS):
Safeguarding is a key priority for the NPS. Staff are required to undertake training in
Safeguarding Adults, Safeguarding Children and Domestic Abuse every 3 years as a
minimum requirement. Safeguarding concerns are discussed in staff supervision
sessions with line managers. Local links have been established so that once identified,
safeguarding concerns can be acted upon swiftly.

Workforce Awareness

Shrewsbury and Telford Hospital NHS Trust:
The Safeguarding Team are actively involved in all safeguarding concerns raised and
this provides the opportunity to engage with the adult at risk to ensure that they
have choice and control and are fully involved in all decisions regarding improving
the quality of their life, wellbeing and safety. 
The adult at risk remains the centre of the safeguarding process. This also includes
liaising with our safeguarding colleagues in the community to ensure continuity of
care and information sharing between agencies. On occasion the adult at risk has
been assessed as not having capacity to be able to make decisions regarding their
wellbeing and safety and requires an appropriate advocate. 

Making Safeguarding Personal

Shropshire Community Health NHS Trust:
We have been reviewing how well Making Safeguarding Personal is being applied in
our safeguarding practice. We looked at the case of a patient who was missing meals
due to inconsistent care visits by a care agency and was insulin dependent, leading to
a risk of harm or hospital admission
The patient expressed the good relationship the carers have with the patient and the
patient did not want this to be safeguarding. Patient had full capacity and we agreed
that it would be in patients best interests to improve communications between the
District nurses, patient and the carers towards good diabetic and wound
management. The patient agreed that this would be a good way to address the
issues with the times of the calls for meal preparation and his diabetic management.
The outcome for the patient improved. With a coordinated care plan the patient was
stable, with regular meals and better diabetes management. The patient was able to
remain at home.

Making Safeguarding Personal

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

30



Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

Shropshire Council: Adult Social Care:
All Social Work teams are taking an approach to work with the person receiving
services to identify the risks and strengths in their lives. For example:

The Mental Health Social Work risk assessment is completed with people where
appropriate, enabling them to identify the risks that they face and that supports
the person to direct the approach required to help manage risk and keep
themselves safe in the way that works best for them.

For complex cases, teams hold multi-disciplinary discussions to identify areas of
risk and concern where harm is likely to occur, implementing action plans to
keep the person safe

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal

Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG):
The Clinical Commissioning Group has been working with health provider
organisations to review safeguarding concerns that have been raised to see if we can
learn any lessons that would help prevent further problems in the future.

This led us to realise that there had been 2 or 3 concerns regarding people being
discharged from one unit with problems getting their medicines immediately after
leaving hospital. As soon as this was spotted the hospital safeguarding lead was able
to find out what the issues were visit the ward and offer advice to make sure the
problem was not repeated.

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

31



Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

Shropshire Fire and Rescue Service (SFRS): 
Fire Crews feel comfortable in reporting concerns as do Vulnerability Officers. The
culture supports prevention. SFRS prevention working has drastically reduce fires and
we believe it can impact positively with partners such as safeguarding those at risk.

Following an external audit of Safeguarding training carried out the Board in 2017,
SFRS was alerted to a development need in the training being carried out across the
organisation. The feedback highlighted that Staff were not focussed on making
safeguarding personal. As a result the training package was re-designed to gives
emphasis to this concept. The Vulnerability Team will be auditing soon to assess how
embedded this now is in the process

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness

Shropshire Partners in Care (SPiC): 
Shropshire Partners in Care is an umbrella body for Disclosure and Barring Service
(DBS) checks, an integral part of recruitment practice. Across 2018-2019 social care
providers were encouraged to develop robust recruitment procedures reflecting
national guidance, to ensure the workforce is as safe as it can be in Shropshire. In
addition, providers were supported to adhere to their duty to refer unsuitable
individuals to the DBS to enable the DBS to make appropriate barring decisions to
keep unsuitable individuals out of the workforce.

When providers, members of the public or adults who use services contacted
Shropshire Partners in Care for support or guidance, the statutory principles including
MSP were reiterated and a focus on involving adults in discussions about
safeguarding concerns, immediate actions, decisions about reporting abuse and
neglect and how adults want to be safe was embedded. 

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

32



Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

33

Action for 2018-2019 Board priority areas addressed

In 2018-2019 Shropshire Partners in Care supported its members around quality in
numerous ways including the facilitation of a Trainers Networking Opportunity
meeting, a Safeguarding Adults Forum, Registered Managers Network and Moving
and Handling Link Meetings. Information was cascaded to members and partners via
a weekly newsletter, Twitter and Facebook social media accounts. 

The statutory principles of prevention and accountability were reinforced across the
range of activities carried out by Shropshire Partners in Care, including clear messages
via advice and training regarding challenging practice, working to prevent abuse and
intervening to stop abuse or neglect. The notion that safeguarding is everybody’s
business was reflected in all aspects of the support provided by Shropshire Partners in
Care to both members and non-members.

Prevention
Making Safeguarding Personal
Public and Workforce Awareness



Annual Report
April 2017 – March 2018

Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire – Annual Rport

Keeping Adults Safe
in Shropshire
Board



People Overview 
Committee

27 March 2019

Item

Public

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2018 – 2019

Responsible officer
Tom Dodds, Statutory Scrutiny Officer
tom.dodds@shropshire.gov.uk
01743 258518

1.0 Summary

1.1 This paper presents Overview and Scrutiny’s proposed work programme for the 
year ahead. The committees have based their programmes on topics from 
Shropshire Council’s Strategic Action Plan. Committees will also 

 scrutinise thematic priorities
 respond to emerging issues and 
 follow up on previous work.

2.0 Recommendations

2.1 Committee members to: 
 confirm the proposed work programme attached as appendix 1.
 suggest changes to the committee work programme and
 recommend other topics to consider

3.0 Background 

3.1 Overview and Scrutiny’s committees base this work programme on topics from 
Shropshire Council’s Strategic Action Plan. They also 

 scrutinise thematic priorities
 respond to emerging issues
 follow up on previous work
 carry out cross-committee work through task and finish groups.

3.2 The current work programme is attached as appendix 1.

mailto:tom.dodds@shropshire.gov.uk


4.0 Next steps

4.1 Overview and scrutiny updates this report on an ongoing basis and presents it to 
each overview and scrutiny committee. This will allow members the opportunity to 
contribute to its development at each committee meeting.

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does not 
include items containing exempt or confidential information)
None

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder)
All

Local Member
All 

Appendices
Overview and scrutiny work programme

Overview and scrutiny task and finish groups



1

Appendix 1
Overview and Scrutiny work programme 2018 to 2019

Performance Management Scrutiny Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work 
date

Update of 
roadworks and 
street works 
task and finish 
group

 To scrutinise progress against the 
recommendations of the roadworks and 
street works task and finish group

committee 
overview report

Highways, 
Transport and 
Environment 
Commissioning 
Manager

Greater public satisfaction 
with the process of carrying 
out roadworks and street 
works.

5 June 
2019

Corporate 
Peer 
Challenge 
Report and 
Action Plan

 Identify the priorities for action emerging 
from the recent corporate peer 
challenge.

 Scrutinise the council’s progress in 
implementing the report action plan.

corporate peer 
challenge report 
and action plan 
and progress 
report 

Chief Executive Shropshire Council is 
making good progress in 
implementing the peer 
challenge action plan.

TBA

Corporate 
Peer 
Challenge 
Report and 
Action Plan – 
exception 
report

 Scrutinise progress against the action 
plan.

 Identify areas for development and 
make recommendations for 
improvement.

action plan 
update report

Chief Executive Assurance that the council 
is making progress in 
developing its action plan.

TBA



2

Communities Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or added 
value

Work 
date

Community 
Safety Strategy

 Understand the updated community 
safety strategy

 Scrutinise the research underpinning 
any changes to the strategy.

committee 
overview report

presentation to 
committee

Community 
Safety Manager

Assurance that the 
Community Safety Strategy 
identifies the right priorities 
for its work. 

18 Mar 
2019

Public rights of 
way

 Understand the challenges faced in 
keeping public rights of way open.

 Scrutinise how rights of way are 
determined, maintained, protected 
and adjusted

 Understand the council’s 
responsibilities and budget with regard 
to maintenance of public rights of way.

presentation to 
committee

Great Outdoors 
Strategy

18 Mar 
2019

Communication 
with town and 
parish councils

 Understand how Shropshire Council 
communicates with town and parish 
councils, and make recommendations 
for how this can be strengthened.

Committee 
overview report

TBA 3 June 
2019

Digital 
Transformation 
Programme

 Understand how the programme is 
improving the council’s service to its 
customers.

Committee 
overview report

Technology and 
Communications 
Manager

16 Sep 
2019

Food poverty  16 Sep 
2019



3

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

Care Closer to 
Home

 To understand how the council can 
work in partnership with the NHS and 
other partners to minimise time 
receiving care in hospitals 

committee 
overview report

presentation to 
committee

Director of 
Performance 
and Delivery, 
Shropshire CCG

Care provided in hospitals 
in minimised, and care in 
community settings is 
maximised.

25 Mar 
2019

ASC Quality 
Assurance 
Framework

 To scrutinise the framework committee 
overview report

Director, Adult 
Services

Framework provide 
assurance of an effective 
service.

25 Mar 
2019

Public health 
funding

 Review proposals for future public 
health funding.

committee 
overview report

Director of 
Public Health

Director, Adult 
Services

Funding for public health is 
used effectively.

25 Mar 
2019



4

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

Ambulance 
services

(with pre-
meeting 
briefing 
session)

 Understand how the service handles 
the most serious calls and the 
service’s heaviest users.

 Scrutinise how the service uses 
response times to deliver an effective 
service.

 Provide feedback on a planned visit to 
the West Midlands Ambulance 
Service 

Map of public 
defibrillators in 
Shropshire

directory of 
ownership and 
maintenance

WMAS 
performance 
data and quality 
accounts

Future Fit travel 
and transport 
analysis

Shropshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group
 

Ensure that Shropshire 
residents receive a 
responsive and effective 
ambulance service.

20 May
2019

Better Care 
and Improved 
Better Care 
funds

 Consider the Improved Better Care 
Fund and its implications for 
Shropshire people. 

 Understand the outcomes of the fund 
and whether these have been 
achieved.

committee 
overview report

presentation to 
committee

Director, Adult 
Services

Ensure good outcomes of 
the funds.

15 July 
2019



5

Health and Social Care Scrutiny Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

Regulatory 
services

 Understand how the council’s 
regulatory services contribute to the 
health and wellbeing of Shropshire’s 
communities

committee 
overview report

presentation to 
committee

Director of 
Public Health

15 July 
2019

Review of 111 
commissioning

 Scrutinise progress in delivering the 
new arrangements for 111 services in 
Shropshire.

committee 
overview report

presentation to 
committee

Shropshire 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group

Provide assurance that 
new arrangements are 
working well.

15 July 
2019

People Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

Shropshire 
Adults Board 
Annual Report

 Provide an overview of the 
Safeguarding Adults Board’s work 
during the previous year.

 Scrutinise changes to governance 
arrangements for the Safeguarding 
Children Board and Safeguarding 
Adults Board.

Shropshire 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board 
Annual Report

Independent 
Chair, 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board

Contribute to developing 
governance arrangements 
for safeguarding in 
Shropshire.

27 Mar 
2019



6

People Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

Warmer 
Homes

 Understand Shropshire Council’s role 
in ensuring people living in privately 
owned or rented homes have warm 
homes.

 Explore opportunities for Shropshire 
Council to take a greater role in this 
work.

Background 
report and 
presentation

Director, Adult 
Services

Ensure people living in 
privately owned or rented 
homes have warm homes.

27 Mar 
2019

Support for 
schools

 Understand the changes to 
governance support for schools

Verbal update 
from Director of 
Children’s 
Services

Director of 
Children’s 
Services

Governance service 
support for schools remain 
in place.

27 Mar 
2019

School 
transport

 Receive an update on proposals for 
school transport support

Verbal update 
from Director of 
Children’s 
Services

Director of 
Children’s 
Services

27 Mar 
2019

Empty Homes  Understand the extent and impact of 
empty homes in Shropshire.

 Scrutinise work to minimise the 
number of empty homes in 
Shropshire.

Presentation and 
overview report

Service 
Manager, 
Regulatory 
Services

Provide assurance that the 
council minimises the 
number of empty homes in 
Shropshire, and mitigates 
the impact of any homes 
that remain empty.

5 June 
2019



7

People Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to 
be heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work date

SEND 
inspection 
preparation

 Scrutinise preparations for future 
inspection of services for SEND 
children.

Presentation Director, 
Children’s 
Services

5 June 
2019

SEN support in 
specialist 
school hubs

 Understand how children with special 
educational needs are supported in 
education.

Children with special 
educational needs have the 
right educational support for 
their needs.

5 June 
2019

School 
improvement

 Scrutinise the impact of changes to 
Shropshire Council’s education 
improvement service.

overview report

presentation

Director, 
Children’s 
Services

Monitor the impact of 
changes to the service and 
make any 
recommendations for 
change.

5 June 
2019

Social worker 
recruitment 
and retention

 Scrutinise the council’s work to 
recruit and retain social workers.

overview report

presentation

Director, 
Children’s 
Services

Shropshire Council recruits 
and retains well-trained 
social workers.

5 June 
2019

Children’s 
services 
performance 
dashboard

 Scrutinise safeguarding and early 
help performance. 

 Identify any specific patterns or 
changes which need to be looked at 
in detail.

overview report

presentation

Director, 
Children’s 
Services

Ensure that Shropshire 
Council is targeting support 
where needed to improve 
safeguarding.

18 Sep 
2019



8

Future topics for consideration include:

 Homepoint
 Drug and alcohol services for young people: To scrutinise the provision of drug and alcohol support services for young people.
 Short breaks for respite care
 Post-16 transport assistance

Place Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to be 
heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work 
date

Place shaping – 
diversification 
of the local 
economy

 Scrutinise progress with the 
delivery of the Council’s Economic 
Growth Strategy, with particular 
focus on keys sectors, higher 
added value businesses, numbers 
of new jobs created, and new 
companies Shropshire in the key 
target sectors. 

 Consider progress in securing 
investment in the digital and health 
care sector.

overview report

presentation

Head of Economic 
Growth

Ensure that housing, 
transport and built 
environment strategies 
effectively support 
economic growth.

Provide assurance that 
the Economic Growth 
Strategy is delivering 
economic benefits.

28 Mar 
2019

Corporate 
Climate 
Change 
Strategy

 overview report

presentation

Sustainability 
Commissioning 
Support Officer

Maximise the financial 
benefits of the strategy

28 Mar 
2019



9

Place Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to be 
heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work 
date

Shopping 
Centres

 Scrutinise how the council is 
managing its shopping centres in 
Shrewsbury town centre.

 Receive an update on progress in 
redeveloping the centres.

overview report

presentation

Director of Place Ensure centres are 
managed well, and that 
good progress is being 
made with plans to 
redevelop the centres.

28 Mar 
2019

Local Transport 
Plan

 Consider the development of the 
new Local Transport Plan and how 
it relates to the delivery of the 
Council’s priorities.

overview report

presentation

Head of 
Commissioning

Contribute to 
development of Local 
Transport Plan.

Provide assurance that 
the plan contributes to 
housing and economic 
growth plans

6 June 
2019

Waste 
Management 
Strategy

 Receive an update on progress in 
implementing the waste 
management strategy.

overview report

presentation

Ensure good progress in 
delivering the strategy.

18 July 
2019

Support for 
small and 
medium 
enterprises

 Understand how the local authority 
aligns it services to support small 
and medium enterprises looking to 
set up or locate to Shropshire, 
following a recommendation from 
the committee in November 2018.

Overview report Head of Economic 
Growth

Provide 
recommendations to 
strengthen the council’s 
support for small and 
medium enterprises.

18 Jul 
2019



10

Place Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to be 
heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work 
date

Highways 
winter service 
plan

 Understand the lesson learned 
from the previous winter 
maintenance plan. 

 Scrutinise planning for the winter 
period 2019-2020.

overview report

presentation

Highways, 
Transport and 
Environment 
Commissioning 
Manager

Contribute to 
development of a winter 
service plan that ensure 
safe highways and 
protects vulnerable 
people.

18 Jul 
2019

Review of 
policy on A 
boards

 To scrutinise a planned 
consultation and its findings

 To make recommendations on 
future policy in light of consultation 
findings.

Overview report Highways, 
Transport and 
Environment 
Commissioning 
Manager

The policy balances the 
needs for businesses to 
advertise their 
businesses with 
maximising footpath 
accessibility.

18 Jul 
2019

Highways 
contracting

 Understand how the council 
contracts highways services, and 
the progress made with those 
contracts

overview report

presentation

Highways, 
Transport and 
Environment 
Commissioning 
Manager

Contracts deliver a good 
standard of highways 
throughout Shropshire.

5 Sep 
2019

WSP annual 
report

 Scrutinise performance of our 
highways delivery partnership

Annual report Highways, 
Transport and 
Environment 
Commissioning 
Manager

7 Nov 
2019



11

Place Overview Committee

Topic Intended outcomes or objectives What output is 
required?

Who needs to be 
heard from?

Expected impact or 
added value

Work 
date

Topics for consideration include:
 Rural exception site grants
 Local housing company
 Communicating Highways works and repairs (September 2019)



12

Appendix 2
Current and proposed task and finish groups

Title Objectives Next reporting
Financial Strategy and Innovation 
and Income Generation 

 To understand the process and activity stages for developing the 
Financial Strategy 2018/19 to 2022/23 and how these translate into the 
Council’s annual budgets

 To consider and scrutinise the proposals and emerging plans for the 
whole Financial Strategy and 2019/20 Budget, including how they align 
to the four pillars. This will be through their development and their 
implementation, in particular for innovation and raising income. 

 To consider the alignment of the Financial Strategy and the new 
Corporate Plan being developed autumn 2018.

 To consider the recommendations and areas for action identified in the 
Corporate Peer Challenge report relating to the Financial Strategy, and 
how they are being addressed.  

 To consider the direct and indirect impacts, including risks, of 2019/20 
Budget proposals on current services and customers.

 To complete specific pieces of work to identify and work up alternatives 
to emerging plans, including the feasibility of any alternative proposals

 Make evidence based recommendations in relation to plans and 
approaches for innovation and income generation, and alternative 
proposals for future budget setting.

Performance 
Management Scrutiny 
Committee 



13

Title Objectives Next reporting
Road casualty reduction  Further analyse statistics on people killed or seriously injured on roads in 

Shropshire.
 Understand the causes of casualties.
 Identify existing and potential local authority and partnership policies that 

can contribute to road casualty reduction.

Place Overview 
Committee
July 2019

Community Transport  To understand how community transport operates in Shropshire, and the 
demand for community transport services.

 Identify how the community transport groups, the council, and other 
partners can work together to provide community transport to people in 
Shropshire who do not have access to public or private transport.

Communities 
Overview Committee
May 2019

Engaging Diverse Communities  To review and propose the scope of Place Plans including their geography 
and subject areas

 To propose options to ensure Place Plans are developed from the bottom-
up

 To understand how rural enterprise features in our procurement / 
commissioning processes.

 To proposed opportunities to engage with Strategic Levels within the 
Council and partners in Place Planning

 To engage with Town and Parish Councils on options to reset their 
relationship with Shropshire Council

 To identify appropriate and effective mechanisms to communicate with and 
engage with diverse communities that can be used to inform co-design and 
collaboration on a range of matters

 Make evidence based recommendations

Communities 
Overview Committee 
TBA



14

Title Objectives Next reporting
Brexit  To consider the information brought together to develop a view for 

Shropshire of the possible implications of BREXIT for the Shropshire 
economy and the achievement of the Economic Growth Strategy.

 To identify, with the relevant officers, the key evidence and related 
requirements of what Shropshire would require from a future UK funding 
approach.  

 To make evidence based recommendations to Cabinet.

Performance 
Management Scrutiny 
Committee 
TBA

Section 106 and Community 
Infrastructure Levy

 To understand how Shropshire Council currently uses Section 106, CIL 
and NHB and the impact that this has had

 To understand how Section 106, CIL and NHB could be used in 
Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic 
growth and prosperity 

 To learn from other places how they have used Section 106, CIL and NHB 
to enable or encourage projects or initiatives for economic growth and 
prosperity

 To make evidence based recommendations on how Section 106, CIL and 
NHB could be used in Shropshire to enable or encourage projects or 
initiatives for economic growth and prosperity

Performance 
Management Scrutiny 
Committee 
TBA


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Keeping Adults Safe in Shropshire Board Annual Report
	11 Work Programme
	Work Programme




